ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 2, 2013
3:05 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Pete Higgins, Chair
Representative Wes Keller, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Benj am n Nageak
Representative Lance Pruitt
Representative Lora Rei nbold
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representative Geran Tarr

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 14

Requesting the United States Congress and the Governor to take
actions necessary to delay inplenentation of the Patient
Protection and Affordable Care Act.

- MOVED CSHIJR 14(HSS) OQUT OF COW TTEE
SPONSCR SUBSTI TUE FOR HOUSE BILL NO. 54
"An  Act relating to the identification, | ocati on, and
notification of specified famly nenbers and famly friends of a
child who is in state custody."”

- MOVED CSSSHB 54(HSS) OUT OF COW TTEE
PRESENTATI ON: ALASKA CHI LDREN S SERVI CES

- HEARD
HOUSE BI LL NO. 134
“"An Act requiring Medicaid paynment for scheduled unit dose
prescription drug packaging and dispensing services for

specified recipients.”

- HEARD & HELD

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -1- April 2, 2013



PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HIR 14
SHORT TITLE: DELAY | MPLEMENTI NG AFFORDABLE CARE ACT
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) STOLTZE

03/ 22/ 13 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 22/ 13 (H) HSS

04/ 02/ 13 (H) HSS AT 3:00 PM CAP| TOL 106
BILL: HB 54

SHORT TI TLE: PLACEMENT OF A CH LD I N NEED OF Al D
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) GARA, THOWPSON

01/ 16/ 13 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/11/13

01/ 16/ 13 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
01/ 16/ 13 (H HSS, JUD

01/ 24/ 13 (H SPONSCR SUBSTI TUTE | NTRODUCED
01/ 24/ 13 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
01/ 24/ 13 (H HSS, JUD

02/ 07/ 13 (H HSS AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

02/ 07/ 13 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

02/ 26/ 13 (H HSS AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

02/ 26/ 13 (H Heard & Held

02/ 26/ 13 (H M NUTE( HSS)

04/ 02/ 13 (H HSS AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 134
SHORT TITLE: MEDI CAI D PAYMENT FOR MEDI SET PRESCRI PTI ON
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) COSTELLO

02/ 20/ 13 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 20/ 13 (H) HSS, FIN

03/ 19/ 13 (H HSS AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 19/ 13 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 19/ 13 (H M NUTE( HSS)

03/ 28/ 13 (H) HSS AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 28/ 13 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 28/ 13 (H M NUTE( HSS)

04/ 02/ 13 (H) HSS AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER
REPRESENTATI VE BI LL STOLTZE

Al aska State Legislature
Juneau, Al aska

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 2- April 2, 2013



PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: | ntroduced HIJR 14, as the sponsor of the
bill.

MARK REGAN
Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during discussion of HIR 14.

KEN HELANDER, Associate Director for Advocacy

AARP

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HIR 14.

PEGGYANN MCCONNOCHI E, Owner

Cycl e Al aska

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HIR 14.

TOBY SM TH, Staff

Representative Les Gara

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SSHB 54 on behalf of the joint
prime sponsor of the bill, Representative Gara, and answered
guesti ons.

AVMANDA METI VI ER, St at ewi de Coor di nat or

Facing Foster Care in Al aska

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during discussion of SSHB 54.

CHRI STY LAWION, Director

Central Ofice

Ofice of Children's Services

Departnent of Health and Social Services

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions during the discussion of
SSHB 54.

DENI S McCARVI LLE, President & CEO

Al aska Children's Services

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented an overview about the Al aska
Chil dren's Servi ces.

MARY ANN PEASE, Vice President Finance and Adm ni stration

Al aska Children's Services
Anchor age, Al aska

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 3- April 2, 2013



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions during the presentation
by the Alaska Children's Services.

CHARLES GUI NCHARD, St af f

Representative Ma Costello

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Present ed HB 134 on behal f of
Representative Costell o, sponsor of the bill.

JON SHERWOOD, Medi cai d Special Projects

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Department of Health and Soci al Services

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during discussion on HB 134.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
3:05:13 PM

CHAIR PETE HHGA NS called the House Health and Social Services
St andi ng Committee neet i ng to or der at 3: 05 p. m
Representatives Higgins, Keller, Tarr, Reinbold, and Nageak were
present at the call to order. Representatives Pruitt and Seaton
arrived as the nmeeting was in progress.

HIR 14- DELAY | MPLEMENTI NG AFFORDABLE CARE ACT

3:06:13 PM

CHAIR HI GA NS announced that the first order of business would
be HOUSE JO NT RESCLUTION NO. 14, Requesting the United States
Congress and the Governor to take actions necessary to delay
i npl enentation of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care
Act .

REPRESENTATI VE BILL STOLTZE, Alaska State Legislature, stated
that he had drafted this resolution out of concern for the
i npl enentation of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care
Act, and offered his belief that this act was not well vetted.
He suggested that the Suprene Court had identified the act as "a
massi ve tax increase.” He said that the crux of this proposed
resolution was to seek delay for the inplenentation of the
Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act. He stated that his
goal was not to oppose it, but delay its inplenentation until
Congress had exam ned all the enployer costs and inpacts on the

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -4- April 2, 2013



private sector. He declared that he had contacted the National
Federation of Independent Business (NFIB), which he deened to be
an advocacy group for "watching and protecting the interests of
the nom and pops in snall businesses” which "make up the fabric

of our econony." He pointed out that the act did not take
effect until 2014. He questioned how many jobs would be | ost
with the act. He offered his belief that this act was a tax
policy, declaring that "taxes affect behavior." He surm sed
that the application of the act would affect enploynent and
busi ness. He opined that this was one of the |argest tax

increases in U S. history.

3:11:41 PM

The conmittee took a brief at-ease.
3:12:19 PM

CHAIR HIGA NS brought the commttee back to order, and opened
public testinony.

3:12: 38 PM

MARK REGAN said that the State of Alaska, by not setting up a
heal th exchange and not actively regulating health insurance in

Al aska, had created a position whereby there was little the
state could do to stop the Patient Protection and Affordable
Care Act from going into effect. [indisc.] He suggested that

the business community was not as nervous about t he
i npl ementation of the act, as it had been earlier. He expressed
his hope that the commttee would delay consideration of this
resolution until it had heard nore bal anced information.

3:14: 21 PM

KEN HELANDER, Associate Director for Advocacy, AARP, said that
he was speaking on behalf of the 95,000 AARP nenbers in Al aska,
and that AARP strongly objected to HIR 14 and a delay to
i npl enentation of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care
Act. He stated that HIR 14 did little to advance any neani ngful
pur pose, pointing out that the act had been repeatedly upheld.
He suggested that the legislature should look for ways to
i nprove the opportunity for all Al askans, instead of |ooking for
ways to stand in the way. He declared that the act presented
many opportunities for growh and economc stinulus in Al aska.
He referenced the Northern Econom c study which concluded that
the Medicaid expansion would add an additional $15 in federal

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 5- April 2, 2013



funds for every state dollar, would generate 4,000 new jobs by
2017, and would generate a cunul ative econom c benefit between
2014 and 2019 of $2.3 billion. [indisc.] He pointed out that
Alaska had opted not to create its own health insurance
exchange, which would bring federal involvenent for a federally
facilitated exchange. He enphasi zed that inplenentation of the
act in Alaska would allow all Al askans access to affordable,
conprehensi ve health care coverage. He declared that AARP woul d
act collaboratively wth policy makers to ensure that a
successful nmarketplace would be established, providing al
Al askans with health care coverage.

3:17:54 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NAGEAK asked for the witten coments to be sent
to the commttee.

3:18:39 PM

PEGGYANN MCCONNOCHIE, Owmer, Cycle Alaska, said that her
conpany, Cycle Al aska, enployed "just under the anbunt necessary
for mandated health care.” She said that her conpany wanted to
gr ow. She decl ared support for proposed HIR 14. She revi ewed
that the annual [health care] premum for the average famly
woul d increase by $2100, while the IRS estimated that a famly
i nsurance plan in 2013 would be $20,000. She declared that her

i nsurance cost had just increased by 13 percent. She referenced
a report by the Congressional Budget Ofice (CBO which
estimated that 7 mllion people would |ose enployer based
coverage, and she opined that this was due to enployer penalties
for lack of enployee insurance. She suggested that enployers
woul d reconmend for enployees to purchase insurance through the
vari ous health exchanges. She reported that other business

owners were not hiring, were dividing their conpanies into units
of fewer than 50 enployees, or were reducing hours from ful

time enploynment in order to avoid this requirenent. Agai n
referencing the CBO, she declared there were 1 trillion new
taxes under the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act. She
declared that she did not "need or want any nore taxes." She

of fered an anecdote about her pre-existing health condition, and
stated that she had always had health care. She opined that the
act would increase her health care costs, and would renove sone
of her current choices. She urged support for HIR 14.

3:21:30 PM

CHAIR HIGE@ NS cl osed public testinony.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 6- April 2, 2013



3:21:47 PM

The committee took a brief at-ease.

3:22:35 PM

CHAI R HI GA NS brought the commttee back to order

[ CHAIR H GG NS passed the gavel to Vice Chair Keller.]

CHAIR H GA@ NS brought attention to proposed Amendnent 1, |abel ed
28-1LS0187\U. 1, Bailey, 4/1/13, which read:

Page 1, line 1:

Del ete "and the CGovernor”

| nsert ", the Governor, and the state's
congressi onal del egati on"

Page 5, following line 12:
Insert new material to read:

"FURTHER RESCLVED t hat t he Al aska State
Legislature calls on the state's Congressional
del egation to introduce, sponsor, support, and vote to
pass legislation in both houses of the United States
Congress that wll delay the inplenentation of the
Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act wuntil a
full analysis of the economc effect of the Act on
Al askans and Al aska can be clearly quantified; and be
it"

CHAIR HIGA NS explained that the proposed anendnent added
anot her whereas which would also urge the Al aska congressiona
del egation in \Washington, DC to take action to delay
i npl enentation of the act.

VICE CHAIR KELLER noved to adopt Anendnent 1, |abeled 28-
LS0187\U. 1, Bailey, 4/1/13. [Text included above]

REPRESENTATI VE PRU TT obj ected for di scussion.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE expressed appreciation for the proposed
anmendnent which was consistent with his stated intent.

VICE CHAIR KELLER explained that proposed Anmendnent 1 would

delete "and the Governor” on page 1, line 1, and insert "the
Governor, and the state's congressional delegation”. He noted

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -7- April 2, 2013



that, on page 5, line 12, a new "Further Resolved" would be
added, and he read:

further resolved that the Alaska State Legislature
calls on the state's Congressional delegation to
i ntroduce, sponsor, support, and vote to pass
legislation in both houses of the United States
Congress that wll delay the inplenmentation of the
Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act until a
full analysis of the economc effect of the Act on
Al askans and Al aska can be clearly quantifi ed;

3:24: 44 PM
REPRESENTATI VE PRU TT renoved hi s objection.
VI CE CHAI R KELLER obj ect ed.

REPRESENTATI VE NAGEAK asked if there would be further discussion
on the proposed resol ution.

VICE CHAIR KELLER stated that there would be further discussion
and he renoved his objection. There being no further objection,
Amendnent 1 was approved.

3:25:13 PM

The comm ttee took a brief at-ease.

[Vice Chair Keller returned the gavel to Chair Hi ggins]

CHAIR HI GA NS brought the commttee back to order

3:25:41 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NAGEAK questioned why there had not been any
testimony fromthe rest of the state regarding proposed HIR 14.
He pointed out that the commttee had not heard anything from
muni ci palities or tribal governnents. He remarked that comments
about a resolution of this magnitude should have been heard from
the rest of the state.

3:26:56 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER decl ared that he supported the resol ution.

He said the resolution had been properly posted to allow the
public to offer its comrents. He offered his belief that the

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 8- April 2, 2013



estinmated costs to the act would increase. He noted that there
were now nore taxes, which created an unsust ai nabl e bur den.

3:28:21 PM

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE offered his belief that AARP "cut a deal”
to market 1its insurance. He expressed his agreement wth
earlier testinony that things had changed in the previous six
nmont hs, al though, he opined, things had not "gotten rosier" as
the public and private sector were sinply nore acquiescent
toward the issues. He offered his belief that the stakes were
el evating even higher, referencing some recent newspaper
articl es. He suggested that the public was "nunbed." He
offered his belief that the NFIB testinony represented the
private sector and small busi nesses. He suggested to
Representati ve Nageak that he "be careful about having a |ot of
trust in that long term what the federal governnent gives, it
can yank away, and does routinely."

3:31: 44 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER commented that a tension from the Patient
Protection and Affordable Care Act (PPACA) was that it "cuts

huge anmounts out of Medicare.”" He deened that the provider had
to pay the difference as Medicare was reduced. He opi ned that
this would create a dependence on Medicaid, "a needs based
program " He expressed his <concern for seniors, and he

suggested that a delay of the act would allow tinme for nore
t hought .

3:33:17 PM

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE concluded that he had focused his
obj ections, and that "governnent can't give us anything unless
they yank it away from sonmeone else first."

3:33:58 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NAGEAK acknow edged that he was not personally
concerned as he had very good insurance, but he expressed his
unease for those who could not afford insurance.

3:35: 03 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REINBOLD offered her bel i ef t hat it was

"inmportant to look out for the fabric of Anmerica that's hol ding
our econony together.” She said "this is an unbelievable bil

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -9- April 2, 2013



and | think it's really inportant that we slow this process
down. "

3:35:28 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TARR, reporting on the history of the Patient
Protection and Affordable Care Act, referenced the individual
mandat e di scussions during the early 1990s. She opined that the
i ndi vidual rmandate was the crux of this act and had been
supported by the Alaska congressional delegation, as well as
endorsed by the Heritage Foundation, which was a well-known pro-
busi ness, conservative organi zation. She declared that this
history was inportant to renenber. She remarked that the
catal yst for change resulted fromthe rising health care costs,
whi ch were hurting businesses. She declared that "she woul dn't
want us to kick the can down the road and not address the
i ssue. " She shared her interest in ensuring that "as many
Al askans as possible have health insurance, have access to
af fordabl e health insurance.” She pointed out that the state
with the nost insured citizens was Mssachusetts, under its
health care program known as "Ronnmeycare." She directed
attention to a table titled, "Health Care Model Conparison."
[Included in nenbers’ packet s] She declared that the
Massachusetts nodel was simlar to the PPACA although nore
restrictive with regard to the enployer nmandate for required
i nsurance cover age.

3:37:39 PM

CHAIR HIGA NS stated that this discussion was not for a
conpari son of Massachusetts care to PPACA, and t hat
Representative Tarr should "wap this up.”

REPRESENTATI VE TARR replied that her coments were valid for the
record, and that she did not appreciate her discussion tine
bei ng shortened as this was a very inportant issue. She opined:
"I don't think 35 mnutes in conmttee over sonething that
affects thousands and thousands of Alaskans is too nuch time."
She pointed to the success of Massachusetts with insuring a high
nunber of individuals, and suggested a | ook at the conponents of
the Massachusetts plan, as they were inportant pieces of
information for developing a plan to attain this goal of
i nsuring nore Al askans.

3:38: 39 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 10- April 2, 2013



CHAIR HIGA NS stated that he had previously heard argunents
about the Massachusetts plan, which he deenmed were "about
Massachusetts only and not about any other state, so it's
conparing apples to oranges, it's conpletely different, and
that's why the nunbers are different."”

3:39:16 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER comment ed: "I really think we need to
really go slow on this." He indicated a statistic from a 2010
Institute of Social and Economc Research (I1SER) study which
said that Al askans spent $7.5 billion for health care, which was
projected to doubl e. He said that this was approximtely half

of the earnings of all Al askans. He offered his belief that a
change was forthcoming, and that it would affect the |ives of
the elderly and others in Al aska.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to report HIR 14, \Version 28-
LS0187\U, [as anended], out of conmittee wth individua
recomendati ons and the acconpanying zero fiscal notes. There
being no objections, CSHIR 14(HSS) was noved from the House
Heal t h and Social Services Standing Commttee.

3:40: 53 PM
The committee took an at ease from3:40 p.m to 3:46 p. m

HB 54- PLACEMENT OF A CH LD I N NEED OF Al D

3:46: 16 PM

CHAIR H GA NS announced that the next order of business would be
SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE FOR HOUSE BILL NO. 54, "An Act relating to
the identification, |location, and notification of specified
famly menbers and famly friends of a child who is in state
custody. " [In front of the conmttee was Version 28-LS0202\R
adopted as the working docunent on February 26, 2013.]

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER nobved to adopt the proposed commttee
substitute (CS) for HB 134, |abeled 28-LS0303\R, M schel
4/ 1/ 13, as the working docunent.

REPRESENTATI VE PRU TT obj ected for di scussion.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked to clarify which bill was being
di scussed.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -11- April 2, 2013



REPRESENTATI VE KELLER clarified that he had nmeant to adopt
[ SSJHB 54, Version R

CHAIR HI GA@ NS resci nded the previous notion

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to adopt the proposed commttee
substitute (CS) for [SSJHB 54, |abeled 28-LS0202\R, M schel,
2/ 7/13, as the working docunent.

3:47:15 PM

TOBY SM TH, Staff, Representative Les Gara, Al aska State

Legi slature, explained that there were three sections in Version
R He read fromthe House Bill 54 Sectional Analysis:

[ I ncluded i n nenbers' packet s]

This section adds a new section to AS 47.10, requiring
that a supervisor in the Ofice of Children’s Services
(OCS) certify in witing that a search for

noncust odi al parents, adult famly nmenbers, and
appropriate adult famly friends of the child has been
conducted. OCS nust notify these adults of the child s
removal within 30 days, unless there are extenuating
ci rcunstances. This section codifies existing OCS
policy related to extended fam |y searches, and adds

t he requi rement of supervisor certification.

This section adds a reference to the new section of
statute established in Section 1. It requires that due
di i gence be conducted to | ocate extended fam |y
menbers before the child is placed in a foster hone.

This section allows the departnent to provide for
enmergency placenent of a child while conducting due
di li gence.

MR. SM TH stated that the proposed bill would not cost the state
any noney, and would address an accountability issue, to ensure
that "front line case workers are doing the work that they are
supposed to be doing, and that's in the best interests of foster
youth by requiring that a supervisor sign off when a case worker
has done a due diligence search.”

3:49: 11 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked if the Departnent of Health and
Social Services (DHSS) had indicated a possibility that this

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -12- April 2, 2013



would renmove an option for not contacting an individua
considered to be a danger to the child.

MR. SM TH deferred to DHSS.

3:50: 02 PM

CHAI R HI GA NS opened public testinony.
REPRESENTATI VE PRU TT renoved hi s objection.
3:51: 05 PM

AMANDA METIVIER, Statew de Coordinator, Facing Foster Care in
Al aska, stated that the proposed bill ensured conpliance wth
regul ations that were already an Ofice of Children's Service'
(OCS) policy. She noted that that there was not a cost to the
state, and it could potentially save noney in the search for
foster honmes, and for the cost of long termfoster care.

3:52:59 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER, noting that the proposed bill required
OCS to notify a list of people, asked if this would force OCS to
make contact with a non-custodial parent who they would prefer
not to contact.

3:53: 48 PM

CHRI STY LAWON, Director, Central Ofice, Ofice of Children's
Services, Departnent of Health and Social Services, said that
this proposed bill did not change the current requirenents for
cont act .

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked if a non-custodial parent included a
parent who had | ost their parental rights through the courts.

M5. LAWION opined that it would not.

REPRESENTATI VE  KELLER asked to confirm this, as this
notification may not serve the best interest of the child.

3:54: 54 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked about earlier testinony that this
was required in federal law and was a policy of the DHSS. He

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 13- April 2, 2013



opined that the concerns presented by Representative Keller
woul d have al ready been addressed.

M5. LAWON replied that the proposed bill included elenents
al ready addressed in federal law, with sone snmall additions that
were not yet included in policy or |aw

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if those additions were reasonable
and beneficial.

M5. LAWON said that the additions were reasonable and could
provi de some enhancenents.

3:56:10 PM

CHAIR HIGA NS asked for the reasons that OCS wanted these
changes in statute.

IVB. LAWION replied that she preferred a <change to the
regul ations, instead of policy. She noted that there had been
concern for whether changes in regulation were the best forum

as policy changes could have the sane effect. She noted that
the magjority of OCS policy, procedures, and day to day practice
were not covered in regulation. She offered her belief that

t hese proposed changes were a better fit in regulation; although
they would be allowable in procedure, the preferred avenue was
in regulations, per the Departnent of Law.

3:57: 47 PM

CHAIR HIGA NS opined that there were too many |ayers of
bureaucracy, and he asked if this proposed bill wuld be a
hi ndr ance.

M5. LAWON replied that the proposed bill did not create
bur eaucr acy, but added conponents  of good practice for
i nprovenent. She said that, although the anpbunt of work for the
staff would be less with a change in policy, the nmeaning and the
intent of the proposed bill was not bureaucratic.

CHAIR HHGA NS asked, if this became statute, would it invite
nore litigation conpared to current experience.

M5. LAWON replied that she did not anticipate any increase i
l[itigation as the majority of the aspects of the proposed bi
were already in practice.

n
I

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -14- April 2, 2013



3:59:44 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked to clarify that there was nothing in
the proposed bill that inplied any preference for placenent of a
chi |l d.

M5. LAWION, in response, said that the proposed bill did outline
a preference standard, but that this was a standard which OCS

al ready used. She explained that the priority ranking was to
relatives, then famly friends with a relationship to the child,
and then to the unrelated licensed foster care famly. She

declared these to be the sane preferences as were currently
f ol | owed.

4:01:15 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked to ensure that his earlier request
for information be delivered to the House Judiciary Standing
Conmi ttee.

4:01: 32 PM

CHAIR HI GA NS cl osed public testinony.

4:01: 40 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to report CSSSHB 54, Version 28-
LS0202\R, M schel, 2/7/13, out of commttee wth individual
recommendati ons and the acconpanying zero fiscal notes. Ther e
being no objection, CSSSHB 54(HSS) was noved from the House
Heal t h and Social Services Standing Commttee.

4:02: 03 PM

The commttee took an at-ease from4:02 p.m to 4:04 p.m

Presentation: Al aska Children's Services

4:04: 27 PM

CHAIR H GA NS announced that the next order of business woul d be
a presentation by the Al aska Children's Services.

DENIS MCARVILLE, President & CEO Alaska Children's Services
(ACS), said that Alaska Children's Services was an organi zation
dedi cated to the well-being of children. He declared that the
focus, since its inception in 1890 as the Jesse Lee Hone, had

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -15- April 2, 2013



been to serve one famly and one child at a tine. He pointed
out that the children canme from all parts of the state. He
reported that the children went through a lot of suffering just
to get to treatnment. He acknow edged that the patterns had been
set for generations, and "wll not be changed by a sinple
program"” He proposed that Alaska Children's Services take the
knowl edge learned in Anchorage, and bring it to the villages.
He said that ACS had been successful in treating children from
the villages for many years. He noted that there was a | oss of
culture, famly, and comunity relationships when the children

came to Anchorage for treatnent. He relayed that transportation
and technol ogy advances now offered the ability to overcone many
pr obl ens. He said that Alaska Children's Services had trained

nmore than 300 people in Anchorage and nore than 200 others in
out si de areas.

4.:07:41 PM

The conmttee took an at-ease from4:08 p.m to 4:13 p. m
4:13:22 PM

CHAIR HI GA NS brought the commttee back to order

MR. McCARVI LLE said that ACS was training and hiring individuals
who cared about people, and although they did not have
credentials, they were interested in serving and continuing on
for a professional degree. He proposed that ACS take its
training and clinical support to the wvillages to teach
i ndi viduals who care, as there was now the technology to do
t his. He declared that a statew de behavioral health training
and delivery system would offer training and support to elders,
teachers, and other interested parties, to work collaboratively

in the villages wth troubled youth and famlies. Thi s
intervention could nake an early difference when the problens
were just becom ng evident. He offered his belief that the
needs of each famly and each village would be different. He

suggested that the training would stay in the villages to help
t he next people who needed hel p. He declared that the goal was
to blend the Anchorage training with the local cultures, using
i n-person and distance based services in collaboration wth
behavi oral heal th aides. He stated that the staff would trave

to villages to build relationships and to provide services, and
then augnent this with distance based initiatives. He |isted
the trainings: mental health first aid; gatekeeper training;

brain based trauma infornmed training; source of strength; trauma
101; caring with love and logic; and, fetal alcohol spectrum

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 16- April 2, 2013



training. He noted other areas that could be adapted to village

needs, i ncl uding: managi ng aggressive behavior; building
t herapeutic relationships; conpetencies for direct care; basic
counseling and training; and, bullying intervention. He noted

that distance and in-person training were the foundation of the
services, but that there would al so be 24 hour clinical support.

4:17:35 PM

MR. MCARVILLE reported that the staff, in Anchorage, could
provide telephonic and crisis intervention to any place with a
W -Fi connecti on. He recognized that services were limted in
sone villages. He declared that it was time to begin to | ook at
where they could provide this service, and that technol ogy could
be a sol ution.

4:19:17 PM

MR. MCARVILLE shared that ACS was nmaking an $8.5 nillion
capital request to ranp up the program He said that approval
would allow them to serve the children. He surm sed that the
treatment of 66 children in the villages, preventing the need to
come to Anchorage for a residential treatnent program would pay
for this program He asked that the House Health and Soci al
Services Standing Conmmttee speak wth the House Finance
Comm ttee in support of this proposal.

4:20:13 PM

MARY ANN PEASE, Vice President Finance and Admnistration

Alaska Children's Services, said that the board of Al aska
Children's Services was very focused on a business type
approach, in addition to its social and holistic m ssion. She
offered to deliver a business plan that would show an overall
reduction in the necessary funding for residential treatnent.
She declared that the current cost was $350 each day for each
child, which did not include the $8 mllion spent for services
outsi de of Al aska. She proposed this innovative program as a
proactive, preventative neasure for all the Al aska conmunities

She directed attention to the letter in support from the Al aska
Native Tribal Health Consortium (ANTHC) [Included in nenbers

packets] and the support from Jeff Jessee, Chief Executive
Oficer of the Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority.

4:22:46 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -17- April 2, 2013



MR. McCARVI LLE stated that the proposed program needed financi al
help "to get this ranped up.”" He shared that the desire was to
bring this up to a scale to help nultiple villages across
Al aska.

M5. PEASE reported that the majority of the current facility was
| ocated near Robert Service Hi gh School in Anchorage. She
reported that the designer of the Al aska State Flag, Benny
Benson, had been a "nenber of the treatnment program"™ so each
year, there was a cerenony honoring him and the agency, on Flag
Day.

4:23:45 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked to clarify, as this was a different
nodel , whether all the details for the program were known.

MR. MCARVILLE replied that ACS was working with ANTHC to
develop ways to operate in the villages. He declared that, as
it was nost inportant for the program to be invited into the
villages, they were currently working toward those invitations.
He pointed out that each village program would vary to neet its
uni que needs.

4:25: 03 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked if ACS would use electronics to
reach out beyond the residential treatnent center.

MR. MCARVI LLE explained that, as ACS already provided in-hone
service in the Anchorage area, the program would use this to
train providers in the villages.

4:25: 42 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked what was the annual ACS budget, and
how many chil dren were served.

MR. MCARVILLE replied that the annual budget was $14 nmillion,
serving about 150 children on any given day. He detailed that
there were 55 children in the residential program 65 were in
treatment foster homes, with the remainder living at hone in the
conmuni ties.

4:26: 34 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 18- April 2, 2013



CHAIR HHGE NS, asking to clarify that this was an $8.5 mllion
capital proposal, requested a breakdown to the distribution of
t he funding.

MR. MCARVILLE, in response, said that the noney would be
invested into the building of a center for both in-person and
t echnol ogy training. He stated that other agencies would be
invited to use the center in coordination with this program

M5. PEASE added that the request included "a fairly hefty
technol ogy conmponent,” as there was extensive technol ogical
equi pnent necessary to serve the comunities.

4:27:43 PM

CHAIR HHGA NS asked to clarify that the requested funding of
$8.5 million would build the 14,925 square foot building and
“fill it with all the equipnent.” He said that it was necessary
to work closely with all the stakeholders. He opined that there
were a lot of really good intentions, but that it was necessary
to consolidate the efforts wth other organizations. He
encouraged ACS to develop "a gane plan that wll work, that
everyone's on board with."

M5. PEASE relayed that nore than 50 percent of the children were
from areas outside of the Anchorage, Mat-Su, Kenai areas.

MR. MCARVILLE reported on a pilot program with a village that
had asked for help. He noted that the village had the
technol ogy availability for the program He shared that there
was a program being developed with Nome for tele-behavioral
heal t h.

4:29: 47 PM

CHAIR HIGA NS referenced an earlier presentation to the House
Health and Soci al Services Standing Conmittee regarding
devel opnment of a certification program for behavioral health
ai des. He observed that, as ACS had a sim/lar approach, the two
groups shoul d work together.

MR. McCARVILLE replied that ACS was focusing on in-formal health
support, which would include parents, grandparents, aunts and
uncl es, and other supporters who were raising the children. He
stated that ACS "would work hand in hand with a behavioral
heal th aide.” He noted that this was simlar to the ACS
col | aborative approach wth ANTHC and University of Al aska

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -19- April 2, 2013



Fai r banks. He reported that the ACS staff training was also
offered to the parents.

4:31:39 PM

CHAIR HHGA NS asked if ACS had estimated the annual maintenance
costs for this program and if there would be fundi ng necessary
in the future.

MR. MCARVILLE replied that the annual cost would include
mai nt enance staff, who already worked on the property, as well
as upkeep to the building. He said that clinical work for
prevention would be paid by Mdicaid, and that there were other
prevention grants and existing funding, for which, he opined,
t he program woul d be eligible.

CHAIR HHGA NS asked to clarify that Medicaid billing would pay
for the program

M5. PEASE said that there would be a cost savings for prevention
and early intervention, instead of residential treatnent, and
that this cost savings had been built into the nodel.

4:33: 37 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NAGEAK, referencing the building maintenance
costs, suggested the use of new technology for |ighting.

M5. PEASE expressed agreenent, and reported that the building
design and diagrams had been donated, stating that it would be
energy efficient with high technol ogy.

4:34:28 PM

CHAIR HIGA NS offered to try to help keep simlar prograns
alive.

4:34. 54 PM
The conmittee took an at-ease from4:34 to 4:37 p.m

HB 134- MEDI CAI D PAYMENT FCOR MEDI SET PRESCRI PTI ON

4:37:55 PM

CHAIR H GA NS announced that the final order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 134, "An Act requiring Medicaid paynent for

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 20- April 2, 2013



schedul ed unit dose prescription drug packagi ng and dispensing
services for specified recipients.” [In front of the conmttee
was Version 28-LS0303\Y, adopted as the working docunment on
March 28, 2013.]

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to adopt the proposed commttee
substitute (CS) for HB 134, |abeled 28-LS0303\R, M schel, 4/1/13
as the working docunent.

REPRESENTATI VE PRU TT obj ected for di scussion.
4:38:24 PM

CHARLES GUI NCHARD, Staff, Representative Ma Costello, Al aska
State Legislature, explained that the changes for Version R
i ncl uded:

Section 1 AS 47.01.031(a). This section has been
amended by adding |egislative intent |anguage guidi ng
the departnent’s eligibility regulations for this
program This | anguage was added to ensure that in
the event that Medicaid services were to expand, the
scope of individuals eligible for this programwould
remain the same. This |anguage appears as (1)-(5) in
par agraph (a), page 1, line 12.

MR. GUI NCHARD referenced his earlier testinony for the bulleted
list of current regulations, and pointed out that simlar

| anguage had been requested for this change. He noted the
second change:

Section 1 AS 47.01.031(c). This section has been
anended by addi ng | anguage to clarify that non-I ocal
transportati on of nmedication conpliance packaging is
by mail or package delivery service.

MR. GUI NCHARD expl ai ned that this addressed concerns for the
earlier limtation to USPS. He comented on the third change
for Version R

Section 1 AS 47.01.031(e)(2). The definitions of
“units of use” has replaced the previous definition of
“medi cation conpliance packagi ng”.

MR. GUI NCHARD said that the proposed bill had been updated

accordingly to reflect this new definition. He declared that
this concluded the changes for proposed Version R

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -21- April 2, 2013



4:41:27 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER said that he was "painfully aware of the
rising costs of health care.” He declared that he would find it
difficult to vote for any expansion of Medicaid services.

JON  SHERWOOD, Medi caid  Speci al Proj ect s, Ofice of the
Comm ssi oner, Departnent of Health and Social Services, said
that dispensing fees and nediset fees were already being paid by
Medicaid. He stated that the proposed bill provided a statutory

requirenent to continue wth this paynent, and that the
i ncreased costs had been noted in the fiscal note. He said that
criteria in the proposed legislation defined qualified
provi ders, whi ch wer e somewhat di fferent t han current

regul ati on. He declared that it was unclear whether this would
expand the nunber of qualified providers.

4:43: 32 PM
The conmttee took a brief at-ease.
4: 45: 23 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked if there was intent to hold the
bill.

CHAIR HGA NS replied that he intended to hold it until Thursday
[April 4].

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER enphasized that he wanted a fiscal note
for the cost increases. He declared that it was necessary to be
cautious of increases because of the rising health care costs.
He asked if there would be a re-evaluated fiscal note.

MR. SHERWOOD said that the changes to Version R would not
significantly alter the fiscal note.

4:46: 59 PM
REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked if the proposed changes woul d nake
it easier for smaller pharmacies to qualify as nediset

phar maci es.

MR. SHERWOOD replied that, currently the requirement was for a
percentage of volume to qualify, and that the current proposed

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -22- April 2, 2013



bill did not require that volune. He shared that he was not
aware if the other requirenments were equally limting.

4:48: 10 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked for assurance that the fee would
reflect in statute, so that businesses could respond.

MR, SHERWOOD, in response to Chair Higgins, explained that the
fiscal note for $414,000 was for the partial year in 2014, which
was then increased to $1,657,000 for the followi ng fiscal years,
2015-2019. He pointed out that federal funding would pay half.
4:50: 03 PM

CHAIR HHGE@ NS asked to clarify that Version R would not change
the cost estimate.

MR. SHERWOOD said that he would provide any necessary fiscal
not e updates on Thursday, April 4.

4:50: 44 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked if the nediset program would
continue to be paid regardl ess of passage of the proposed bill
and he asked to clarify the cost increase.

MR. SHERWOOD explained that the |anguage of the proposed bil
would increase the frequency of +the dispensing fee, or an
equi val ent increase in the conbi ned di spensing and nedi set fee.
4:51:59 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TARR asked if it was possible to address the
proposed anmendnent .

4:52:42 PM
REPRESENTATI VE PRU TT renoved his objection to Version R
4:52:58 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TARR noved to adopt Amendnment 1, |abeled 28-
LS0303\Y.1, M schel, 3/28/13, which read:

Page 2, following line 21:
| nsert a new subsection to read:

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 23- April 2, 2013



"(e) The departnent may apply a vol une di scount
to a fee established under (b) of this section
(1) if a qualified pharmacy dispenses a
hi gh  vol une, as defined by the departnent, of
prescriptions that require nedication conpliance
packagi ng for an individual patient; or
(2) based on the total nunber of
prescriptions requiring medi cati on conpl i ance
packagi ng annual |l y di spensed by the pharnmacy."

Rel etter the follow ng subsection accordingly.
REPRESENTATI VE KELLER obj ected for di scussion.

REPRESENTATI VE TARR said that, as cost containnent was a
priority for Medicaid prograns, she had concerns with the fisca
not e. She reflected that, as the current dispensing fee was
billed per prescription, if a fee cap were placed on the
di spensing fee, then the pharmaci st cost would still be covered,
and the fiscal note could be reduced. As discussion with the
sponsor and the departnent had indicated the difficulty with a
volune |imtation or a fee cap, she w thdrew proposed Anendnent
1

4:55: 07 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TARR asked that Departnent of Health and Soci al
Services respond to the difficulty for a fee cap.

MR. SHERWOOD agreed that there had been discussion for a limt
to the fees for nultiple prescriptions in the sanme nedi set
package. He said that it was not practical as the prescriptions
were processed one at a tinme at the point of sale, pointing out
the difficulty for overseeing this. Comrenting on proposed
Amendnent 1, he opined that it would allow a discount for the
nmedi set fee for a pharmacy which dispensed a high volune of
nmedi set s. He reported that DHSS had assuned there was this
| atitude should the cost survey data support this fee structure.
He stated that it would not be problematic to state this
authority, as well.

4:57:38 PM

CHAIR HIGA NS asked if Representative Tarr still wanted to
wi t hdraw proposed Amendnent 1.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 24- April 2, 2013



REPRESENTATI VE TARR replied that her decision would reflect the

will of the commttee. She declared her desire for DHSS to
pursue every opportunity for cost containnent, while stil

provi di ng nedi sets. She offered her belief that the pharmacies
woul d have covered all <costs at sonme point in filling an

i ndi vidual nediset, and that all prescriptions for that nediset
beyond that were being paid at a much higher profit.

4:59: 03 PM

CHAIR HIGA NS asked to clarify whether proposed Anmendnent 1
woul d decrease the fiscal note.

MR. SHERWOOD offered his belief that it would not affect the
fiscal note. He declared that DHSS had assumed that the
latitude to lower the dispensing fee for higher volune
di spensing had already existed; therefore, this would not
decrease the fiscal note. He stated that DHSS did not object to
any language that <clearly described the DHSS permssion to
di scount.

5:00: 37 PM
REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked if it was the doctor or the patient
who selected the pharnmacy. He opined that a group contracting

with a pharmacy would bring a | ower cost than an individual.

MR. SHERWOOD, in response, stated that this was determ ned by

the Medicaid services as "any wlling provider." He detailed
that the qualifications for being a provider and a pharnmacy
could result in enrollment as a pharmacy provider. He decl ared

that the recipient nade the decision for pharmacy selection. He
stated that prices were set wusing national data for the drug
price, and that the departnment had sent a cost survey to the
participating Medicaid pharmacies to determne the best, nost
reasonabl e way to approxi mte the dispensing fees. He said that
this data allowed distinctions to be made for vol une.

5:03: 34 PM

REPRESENTATI VE  KELLER requested that Representative Tarr
wi t hdraw t he proposed anendnent.

REPRESENTATI VE TARR wi t hdrew proposed Anendnent 1, stating that
she had primarily wanted to have the conversation. She decl ared
that, as it was a conplex issue, she would keep review ng
alternatives.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 25- April 2, 2013



5:04:12 PM

MR SHERWOOD clarified that the fiscal note reflected $657, 000
for an anticipated expansion of nediset service into Fairbanks,
as determned by the bill sponsor. He declared that, although
it was unclear whether that expansion would happen, it would
serve as a proxy for that service.

5:05: 38 PM

CHAIR HHGE NS said that HB 134 woul d be hel d over.

5:06: 09 PM

ADJ QURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Health and Social Services Standing Conmittee neeting was
adj ourned at 5:06 p.m

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 26- April 2, 2013



